HOUSE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
April 4, 2011
8:39 a.m

8:39: 02 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co- Chair Thomas called the House Finance Commttee neeting
to order at 8:39 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bill Thomas Jr., Co-Chair
Representative Anna Faircl ough, Vice-Chair
Representative Ma Costello

Representati ve M ke Doogan

Representati ve Bryce Edgnon
Representative Les Gara

Representative David Guttenberg
Representati ve Reggi e Joul e

Representative M ke Hawker (Alternate)
Representative Tanm e WI son

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Bill Stoltze, Co-Chair

ALSO PRESENT

Representative Kurt O son; Representative M ke Chenault,
Sponsor; Tom Wight, Staff, Representative Mke Chenault;
Donal d Bul | ock, Attorney, Legislative Legal Services; Roger
Mar ks, Legislative Consultant, Legislative Budget and Audit
Conmi ttee.

SUMVARY
HB 142 PRESUMPTI ON AG A PRQJECT | S UNECONOM CAL

HB 142 was HEARD and HELD in conmmttee for
further consideration.

#hb142
HOUSE BI LL NO. 142

House Fi nance Conmmittee 1 04/04/11 8:39 A M



"An Act relating to the creation of a rebuttable
presunption that the project l|icensed under the Al aska
Gasline |Inducenent Act is uneconomc because of
insufficient firm transportation conmmtnents during
the first open season.”

8:39:26 AM

REPRESENTATI VE M KE CHENAULT, SPONSCR, introduced HB 142.
He provided history; just over three years ago, Al aska
Gasline Inducenent Act (AGA) was passed and TransCanada
was authorized to pursue the project. He reported that
TransCanada conducted an open season for the duration of
April 30, 2010 through July 2010 and announced bids from
multiple parties with a significant interest. TransCanada
expected the negotiation of precedence agreenents by the
end of 2010. He infornmed the commttee that three nonths
|ater, the self-inposed deadline remained unnmet. He stated
that the unnet deadline was not an indication of a failure
on the part of TransCanada.

8:42:21 AM

Representative Chenault explained that +the state and
| egi slature had no know edge of the bids, the conditions
attached, or negotiations toward the precedent agreenents.
Under AGQ A the state promsed up to $500 mllion in
rei nbursenents to TransCanada. Al aska paid up to 50 percent
of the qualified expenses up to the end of the first open
season, $36 mllion. After open season, the state would pay
90 percent. TransCanada had not submitted all requests, but
the governor included $160 mllion dollars in the FY12
budget request. The state paid a great share despite all of
the wunknowns, while world economic conditions changed
dramatically. Gas prices remained at extrenely |ow |evels.
Maj or gas discoveries cane into production rapidly to serve
potential markets for Al aska gas.

Representative Chenault questioned whether AG A was still
econom cal for Alaska. He asserted that the adm nistration
must prove that the investnent was sound. He stated that he
did not want Alaska to waste tine and opportunity to
devel op the resource.

8:45: 16 AM

Representative Gara believed the worst thing that could
happen was a breach of contract on the |argest future

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 04/04/11 8:39 A M



project for the state. He opined that wal king away from a
contract where a party nmet obligations would prove
detrinmental for the state.

Representative Chenault opined that the bill would not
breach the contract but would force the adm nistration to
revisit the legislature and prove the economic viability of
the project.

Representative Doogan clarified that the state paid a
certain anount of noney and the governor requested an
i ncrease of funding to $300 mllion.

Represent ati ve Chenault agreed.

Representative Doogan continued that HB 142 presented an
opportunity to the legislature to intervene in the process.

Representative Chenault clarified the intention that the
admnistration wuld comunicate wth TransCanada and
return with a determnation whether the project was
econonmical allowing for a decision to be made.

Represent ati ve Doogan asked who woul d nmake the deci sion.

Representative Chenault responded that the admnistration
woul d make the deci sion.

Representative Doogan asked if a valid contract between
state and TransCanada existed to go to Federal Energy
Regul at ory Conm ssion (FERC) |icense.

Representative Chenault pointed out a clause in the
contract that would allow either or both parties to
determ ne that the project was uneconom cal and would be
able to back out of the contract.

8:49:16 AM

Represent ati ve Doogan understood the contract differently.

Representative Gara inferred that the project was dead and
unecononi cal i f TransCanada failed to disclose firm
transportation commtments by July 15, 2011. He asked if
the date of July 15, 2011 existed as a firm transportation
commitment in either the |icense or the statute.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 04/04/11 8:39 A M



TOM WRI GHT, STAFF, REPRESENTATIVE M KE CHENAULT, replied
that the language in the bill should be changed to state
"precedent agreenent. He explained that the intent stated
by TransCanada and filed wth FERC included precedent
agreenents by Decenber 31st 2011. He clarified that the
bill ought to state "precedent agreenent" rather than "firm
transportation commtnents.”

Representative Gara noted that the July 15, 2011 did not
exist in either the license or the statute.

M. Wight responded correct.

Representative CQuttenberg asked whether the Departnent of
Law had provi ded an opinion regarding the contract.

Representative Chenault replied that he had not solicited
the information from the Departnent of Law. He believed
that the admnistration had asked the questions of the
attorney general, but he was not aware of an answer. He
suggest ed t hat Representati ve Gut t enberg ask t he
adm ni stration.

Vice-chair Fairclough admtted that her statenment was
anecdotal . She continued that when AGQ A was passed and a
contract was awarded, an expectation from general public
was established that Al askans would know whether a viable
project existed. She asked if the expectations were
reasonabl e.

Representative Chenault agreed with the vice-chair's stated
expectation of Alaskans regarding a viable project. He
asserted that the AG A process was sold to Al askans through
previous adm nistrations as the only viable way to bring a
gas pipeline forward in the state. The process did not
outlaw the producers from bidding on the ©project.
TransCanada bid on the project and he opined that
TransCanada was a world class pipeline corporation. He
respected the organization of TransCanada. The idea was
proposed to get Al aska out from underneath the "thunbs" of
the big three producers. However, wthin a week of the
i ssuance of the license, the chairman of TransCanada was
asked when go forward and his response was "Wen Exxon says
we are ready to go." He described that as the first "eye-
opener"” for Al askans and the |egislature.

8:55:32 AM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 04/04/11 8:39 A M



Representative Chenault believed that the contract had to
be net, although he did not personally agree wth the
projects. He thought a crossroads had been reached and
deci sions nust be made. He stressed that the issue was the
econonmcal nature of the project. He feared that $500
mllion could be spent, wthout the finality of gas
production and export.

Vice-chair Fairclough recalled concern by the genera
public about spending $500 million. She pointed out that
$136 mllion had been spent w thout a clear understanding
of the benefits gained by the expense.

Represent ati ve Chenault agreed.

Vi ce-chair Fairclough understood that tax structure was a
key conmponent of the argunent. She noted that the
| egislature was fighting internally. She read in the
newspaper that tax certainty was essential and the tax
structure was failing. She suggested that those seeking
econom c certainty were in opposition to the bill. She
asked if the terns of the tax structure were sufficient for
the producers to conmt gas to the AG A or Denali projects.

8:58: 59 AM

Representative Chenault responded that gas certainty would
eventually becone part of any gas project. TransCanada
woul d not negotiate the tax certainty issue. Al aska would
negotiate wth potential shippers. The AG A process would
address the cost of the project and negotiate wthout
third-party invol venent.

Representative W/Ison asked about a requirenment to inform
t he public about the outcone of the open season.

Representative Chenault replied that TransCanada woul d have
to disclose the information. He believed that disclosure
must occur within ten days of filing for the FERC license.
The deadline regarding results was self-inposed by
TransCanada.

Representative WIson recalled hearing that the public
woul d receive information about the open season soon after
the election in Novenber. She asked whether the bill would
al | ow di scl osure sooner.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 04/04/11 8:39 A M



Representative Chenault believed not since the deadline was
sel f-i nposed.

9:01: 42 AM

M. Wight provided an overview of HB 142. He urged the
commttee to adopt the words "precedent agreenent” rather

than "firm transportation commtnent." The bill required
the administration to prove to the legislature that the
project was economc. If the bill was not deened econonmic

then the administration was required to submt a report to
the legislature rebutting the presunption before August 15,
2011. The legislature mght also state that there was
i nsufficient evidence to rebut the presunption in
conjunction with a request for an appropriation for the
rei nbursenent of qualified expenditures for FY 2013 and
provi de testinony and evidence that the project had credit
sufficient to finance construction. The adm nistration
shall notify the legislature before August 1, 2011 whet her
the commtnents are disclosed to the comm ssioners before
July 15th and report whether the disclosed commtnents were
sufficient to support developnent of the project. The
report should be submitted by August 15, 2011. Should the
adm nistration state that they were unable to rebut the
evi dence, they would be requested to initiate abandonnent
per AGQ A Section 43.90.240. The abandonnment clause was
conplicated and could be initiated by either one or both
parties.

Representative Gara asked if the legislation presented a
bridge of <contract. He maintained that a contract was
signed and a bill passed.

M. Wight retorted that the statenent existed already in
law i n AS 43. 90. 240 as abandonnent of project.

9: 05: 28 AM

Representative Gara argued that the bill changed the rules
constituting the presunption that the project was not
econom c. He pointed out that the new bill was not in the
license or in the original statute as a basis for exiting
the contract. He expressed concern that the bill mght be

viewed as a breach of contract and nmay potentially expose
the state to a large amount of damages rather than noving
ahead toward a gas pi peline.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 04/04/11 8:39 A M



M. Wight responded that changing economc conditions
occurred throughout the country and the world. He stressed
that the legislation did not intend to violate a contract.
He stated that if the project was deened uneconom c, and
the precedent agreenents or firmtransportati on commtnents
were not reached, then the administration was to informthe
| egi sl ature.

Representative Guttenberg recalled that the |egislature had
access to reports, records, and requi rements for
TransCanada. He asked whether the records had been
i nvesti gat ed.

M. Wight responded that the Alaska Gasline Project
website provi ded i nformation. He under st ood t hat
TransCanada expected to have precedent agreenents in place
by Decenmber 31, 2011. He stated that his office did not
have access to internal information as nuch of it was
confidential and proprietary.

Representative Cuttenberg stated that AS 43.92.20 allowed
comi ssioners access to records. He expected sonme arbitrary
dates and conmm t ments.

M. Wight stated that he did not have the answer. He
believed the admnistration had nore information as well as
Tr ansCanada

9:09: 46 AM

DONALD BULLOCK, ATTORNEY, LEA SLATIVE LEGAL SERVI CES,
reported that he participated in the drafting of AGA He
opined that the proposed legislation did not breach the

contract but instead raised questions of legitimte
| egi sl ative concern. He cited the reinbursenent in
43.90. 110, which stated "subject to appropriation, state
mat ching contributions in the form of reinbursenents.” He
noted that the appropriation comes up every year. He
asserted that the bill did not take action; there was clear

division of authority between the legislative branch and
the executive branch. The executive branch was responsible

for carrying out the license: audi ti ng, revi ewi ng
TransCanada' s expendi tures, access to on-going information.
House Bill 142 raised the question of the viability of the
project. He stated that AGA provided the "out,"”™ AS
43.92.40 if the project was uneconomic. The bill did not

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 04/04/11 8:39 A M



deem the project uneconom c conclusively because of the
response that comm ssioners can make after August 1st or
August 15th when they were required to respond and provide
information to the state.

M. Bullock pointed out the discussed dates addressing the
agreenent between the state and TransCanada. He referred to
other relevant docunents including the open season notice
publi shed by TransCanada |ast sumrer. He pointed out that
the notice included past dates. Sonme of the dates referred
to public information regarding the open season response
including notices to the bidders. He stated that AGA
required the open season dates. He nentioned the inportance
of the increase in shared contributions and questions about
the open season. He nentioned a provision regarding the
i nducenents offered to producers who committed during the
first bi nding open season. He pointed out royalty
provisions for commtnments made during the first open
season. The provisions related to the fiscal future of the
state. He mintained that HB 142 did not change the
contract, but provided a request for information regarding
AG A and comm tments.

9:14: 01 AM

Representative Hawker spoke to concerns about HB 142
interfering with the contractual agreenent between the
state, TransCanada, and Exon Mobil. He clarified the date
of the self-inposed deadline for conpletion of the
precedent agreenent as Decenber 3, 2010 rather than 2011.

He opined that the bill paid careful attention to avoid a
conflict or interference in the existing contractua
rel ati onship. He requested confirmation from M. Bullock
that the language in the bill did not involve the

contractual rel ationship.

Representative Hawker pointed to Page 1, Line 12, and the
action item stating that the comm ssioners shall notify the
| egi sl ature. He pointed out Page 1, Line 14, which stated

that communication shall report whether firm commtnents
were disclosed and sufficient to support the project. He
cited Page 2, Line 3, which was under the conditional, if

the presunption in Item 1 is raised. The only mandate was
for the admnistration to submt a report to the
| egislature as stated in Line 3. The other requirenent
stated was that the adm nistration provided testinony and
evidence inplicitly to the legislature. He stated that

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 04/04/11 8:39 A M



these action itens do not address the operation of the
contract.

Representative Hawker pointed out Page 2, Lines 18 - 20,
Section C, which state that nothing in the Ilegislation
proposed, precluded the agreenent between the conm ssioners
and the licensee. The bill clearly stated that it did not
have any effect on the obligations, roles, responsibilities
or possible execution under that provision. He maintained
t hat the bill created a relationship between the
| egi sl ature and the adm ni stration.

M. Bull ock agreed.

9:17:41 AM

Representati ve Costello asked whet her AG A was a
traditional contract.

M. Bullock responded that AGA was a |license issued by the
state including commtnents stated in 43.91.10. He stated
that the commtments included that the state share in the
costs of developing the pipeline project and provide the
services of the AG A coordinator. The consideration offered
by TransCanada included the "nust haves" in 41.91.30 or the
commitments required to qualify for the |icense and receive
t he noney; contractual aspects and procurenent aspects. The
procurenent aspects included in advance of the license, the
state advertised it and explained the expectations of the
state in return for a response to the commtnents.

Representative Costello asked if when the assertion was
made that the contract or agreenment was breached, then a
tinmeline requiring comunication by a specific date was
established by the proposed |egislation. She supposed that
the legislation required the comunication by a specific
dat e.

M. Bullock agreed, but added that the |anguage was not
limted to the comrunication between TransCanada and the
state. He opined that the statenent made by TransCanada
that they would like to inform the state in Decenber the
extent in which they had enjoyed success during the open
season, was an informal comment. He nentioned other dates
established in TransCanada's open season notes. The dates
were incorporated in the order approving a plan for open
season. Sonme of the dates had cone and gone. House Bill 142

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 04/04/11 8:39 A M



was sinply requesting information regarding AdA He
highlighted that A A stated the commtnents and prom ses
of the state and interest in sharing the contributions,
whi ch were relevant issues of legislative concern. The bill
asked the adm nistration whether the noney was spent on an
appropriate project.

Representative Costello wunderstood that the state was
wi thout a project until they heard the words "precedent
agreenent." She asked whether project could be economc
based on the existence of bids or was a resolution of
conditions required in the precedent agreenent before the
proj ect was determ ned to be econom c.

9:21: 37 AM

M. Bullock opined that the ideal nmethod of establishing
the viability of the project would include a review of the
standards for abandonnent. Timng was a different issue.
The conm ssioners agreed that addi ti onal time was
necessary. The arbitration panel would consider whether the
proj ect was unecononic. The panel only gets involved in the
events of disagreenments between the conmm ssioners and
TransCanada. The arbitration panel would then nmake a
determ nation that the project was uneconomc only if the
panel finds that the party claimng the project was
uneconom ¢ as proven by a preponderance of the evidence. He
quoted the statute "the project does not have credit
support sufficient to finance construction of the project
t hr ough firm transportation comm t nent s, gover niment
assi stance, or other external sources of financing." "The
predicted cost of transportation at a 100 percent |oad
factor when deducted from a predicted gas sales revenue
using publicly available predictions of future gas prices,
but result in a producer rate of return that is below the
rate typically accepted by a prudent oil and gas
exploration and production conmpany for increnental upstream
investnment that is required to produce and deliver gas to
the project.” He asked if enough comm tnent existed to fill
the pipeline and whether the tariff was |ow enough so that
people putting gas into the pipeline at the Alaska end
could profit.

Representative Gara never thought he would see the
| egislature try to kill a project that Al askans have been
working toward for 30 years. He reported that he once
practiced |law as an assistant attorney general on oil and

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 04/04/11 8:39 A M



gas issues. He argued the statenent that the proposed
| egislation did not breach the contract.

Representative Gara referred to Page 1, which stated that
"by July 15th 2011, transportation commtnents have to be
put forward and if they are not, there is a brand new
rebuttable presunption that the project 1is uneconom c,
whi ch gives the state greater power than to back out of the

contract." He asked if the rebuttable assunption that the
project is wuneconomc existed in license, contract, or
statute.

9:24:57 AM

M. Bullock questioned the premse of the question. He
stated that TransCanada would not rebut the presunption. He
maintained that there was no additional burden on
TransCanada. He i nf or med t he conmittee t hat t he
adm ni stration would rebut the presunption.

Representative Gara asked whether the provision that a
rebuttable presunption existed in license and in statute.
He believed that the |anguage was new and did not exist in
the Iicense and the statute.

M. Bullock agreed. He stressed that the legislation did
not amend AG A, but instead asked questions regarding the
provision included in AG A The ongoing issue was whether
the project continued to prove uneconomi cC.

Representati ve Gara count ered t hat t he rebuttable
presunption provided the state a greater power to back out
of the contract.

M. Bullock responded no, the rebuttable presunption did
not provide the state a greater authority to back out of
the contract. The ultimate issue, whether the contract
woul d be abandoned were within the ternms of AS 43.90.240, a
provi sion enacted before the license was issued. The bill
di d not change the provision.

Representative Gara asked if the bill acconpl i shed
anyt hi ng.

M. Bullock replied no.

House Fi nance Committee 11 04/04/11 8:39 A M



Representative Gara asked why the bill the bill was
necessary.

M. Bullock responded that the legislature required the
information mandated by the legislation. He believed that
the legislature should know how and where the noney was
spent. The information would enable the legislature to
det erm ne whet her the noney was well spent.

Representati ve Gara f ound M. Bul | ock' s t esti nmony
inconsistent. He asserted that if the existing bill carried
the required contracts then HB 142 was unnecessary. The
existing law created no rebuttable presunption |anguage,
nor did it advise the state to back out in the event of a
rebuttabl e presunption. The existing |law did not create any
July 15th, 2011 |anguage. He argued the need for the bill
unl ess there was a desire to change AdQ A

M. Bullock wondered what questions the conmttee m ght ask
the adm nistration and TransCanada follow ng the request of
an appropriation of $160 mllion.

9:27:44 AM

Representative Gara contended that existing |egislation
contained no rebuttable presunption and the bill would
create one. He expressed interest in the attorney general's
opi nion of the proposed |egislation.

M. Wight agreed. He mamintained that the bill did not
provide a breach of contract, but he instead viewed the
bill as a nmeans to determ ne whether the project renains
econoni c.

Representati ve Hawker referred to statenents that the "bill

kills the gasline" and that "t he bill requires
transportation commtnents to be put forward by a date
certain." He asked M. Bullock if the bill required firm

transportation commtnents to be put forward by a certain
dat e.

M. Bul |l ock responded no.
Representative Hawker asked about the statenent that the

bill was "attenpting to change AG A law." He asked if any
| anguage included in HB 142 changed the AQ A | aw.

House Fi nance Committee 12 04/04/11 8:39 A M



M. Bullock stated that the bill mde no amendnents to
AG A

Representative Hawker asked if the proposed |egislation
acconplished any action other than posing the question to
the admnistration fromthe | egislature

M. Bul l ock responded no. The bill only requested
information for the legislature for the purpose of their
deci si on maki ng regardi ng ongoi ng appropriations.

Representative Doogan asked who the contract existed
bet ween.

M. Bullock responded the conm ssioners of Departnent of
Revenue (DOR) and Departnent of Natural Resources (DNR) and
TransCanada and Foothills Ltd. who represented the
| i censee.

Representative Doogan asked if "we" were a party to the
contract.

M. Bullock responded that if "we" was the state then yes,
but "we" was the executive branch then no. He furthered
that the executive branch was responsible for inplenenting
the contract and ensuring that terns were net. He stated
that the legislature was initially responsible for enacting
the terms of AG A including the required commtnents and
t he annual appropriation of noney toward the contract or to
rei mburse the contributions.

9:31: 33 AM

Representati ve Doogan commented on expectations regarding
the passage of HB 142. He understood that AG A maintained
that TransCanada would do everything it could to get a
pi peline financed and built. He understood that the real

obligation was to go as far as FERC to obtain a |icense

The expectation was a $500 mllion cost, which would be
paid in segnents. He asked if his recollection of the AG A
agreenent was accurate.

M. Bullock replied that Representative Doogan was correct.
He added that proposed |licensees were obligated to disclose
the anmount of reinbursenent they planned to seek. He noted
that TransCanada's application requested the statutory

House Fi nance Conmmittee 13 04/04/11 8:39 A M



maxi mum whi ch was 50 percent initially and then 90 percent
after the close of the first open season.

Represent ati ve Doogan asked about the $500 million figure.
M. Bullock agreed with $500 million as the stated figure.

Representative Doogan clarified that the state was in the
m ddl e of that process authorized by law, yet M. Bullock
advised the legislature that they could legally back out of
t he deal

M. Bullock corrected that he did not advise backing out of
the deal. He nentioned the provision AS 43.90.240 in AGQ A,
whi ch stated the standard for AG A to continue.

M. Bullocks stressed that the |egislature could not void
the contract established in AGA, but they could refuse to
appropriate noney for the rei nbursenent.

Representative Doogan asked if refusal to appropriate the
noney for the reinbursenent would void the contract.

M. Bullock responded that the courts would decide the
issue. He recalled that the legislature had encountered
simlar issues in the past. An appropriation renained
necessary for noney to be spent. He stated that the issue
may raise contractual questions, but the contract did not
require the legislature to vote for an appropriation.

Representative Doogan opined that if the contract was
voided the state would end wup contributing the noney
wi thout the benefits of the gasline. He asked if there was
any reason not to suspect that woul d happen.

M. Bullock agreed that the risk existed. He noted that
43.90.240 would apply in the event that the contract ended
because if the project was deened uneconomic then it would
be ripe for abandonnent.

9:35:23 AM

Representative Costello believed that the project created a
conpelling interest for the public. The public w shed to
understand where the state stood in the instate gasline
process. She stated that the AG A bill existed without a
fiscal note and HB 142 allowed the |egislature access to

House Fi nance Committee 14 04/04/11 8:39 A M



i nformation. She requested coments from M. Wi ght
regarding the public's influence on the creation of the
bill.

M. Wight responded in the affirmative. He added that the
aspect of appropriation was also a catalyst for the bill

He corrected an earlier date to Decenber 31st 2010. He
stated that the bill wshed to achieve the information
about precedent agreenents and TransCanada. He found the
lack of information regarding the success of the open

season di sturbi ng. He  discussed concerns regar di ng
timelines. He wi shed to know whether AQJ A would prove
economc or not. If the project was not deened economc

then the legislature nust explore other options for
Al askans. The public was considered heavily wth the
i ntroduction of the bill.

Representative Costello pointed out t hat the bil
junpstarted a conversation regar di ng confidenti al
information. She understood that the |egislature did not
intend to seek any detailed information. She asked what the
state anticipated that the legislature would achieve in
terms of the status of the project.

M. Bullock replied that +the question regarding the
viability of the project was in the jurisdiction of the
conmi ssioners. The comm ssioners were also aware that the
information was confidential, which required a certain
amount of trust. He was sure that confidential information
would not be provided and he did not know what the
| egi slature would be told. He knew that the bill would
direct the conm ssioners to consider the questions raised
and they woul d nmake decisions about how the answers to the
gquestions affected the |icense.

Representative Costello wunderstood that one |egislature
could not bind another. She heard the feelings of
uneasi ness about changing AG A and wondered about the
response if one | egislature cannot bind anot her.

9:40: 29 AM

M. Bullock replied that binding contracts existed, hence
the caution "subject to appropriation.” The person that bid
on a contract or responded to a quest for proposal would
understand and determ ne the appropriate ri sk.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 15 04/04/11 8:39 A M



Representative Costello asked if a project was not funded,
woul d it succeed.

M. Bullock replied that he was unsure about past instances
where the issue had arisen. He explained that if the

| egislature did not pay a bill, the state m ght be sued for
breach of contract. He nentioned timng issues. He
reiterated that the bill was directed to the appropriation

process. He believed it inappropriate to anmend AG A He
stated that HB 142 approached the issue from the standpoint
of ongoi ng appropriations and the provision within AG A

Representative (Quttenberg recalled repeated discussion
regarding the bill and its inability to change the contract
between the state and TransCanada. He asked if the bill
changed the relationship between TransCanada and those
seeking firm commtnents. He wondered if the bill would
create a new deadline for those entities seeking a firm
comm tment wi th TransCanada.

M. Wight responded that he viewed the legislation as a
benchmark to inform the |legislature about the economc
viability of the project. He explained that if the project
was not econom c, steps outlined in the AG A process would
be taken.

Vice-chair Fairclough nmentioned AS 43.90.240 and the
abandonnent of a project. She read "if the conm ssioner or
licensee determines that the project is uneconomcal" and
added that a dispute would then proceed to the American
Arbitration Association. She concluded that the current
statute addressed the process under consideration.

9: 45: 33 AM

Representative Hawker asked about the abandonnment cl auses
and whether they were in the existing statute. He wondered
whet her the proposed | egislation nodified existing statute.

M. Bullock replied that the statute was enacted as part of
AG A and provided for the abandonment of a project should
t hat project becone uneconom c.

Representative Hawker wondered that if the abandonnent

clauses were invoked would they trigger any economc
damages | ocated in other provisions in AG A

House Fi nance Conmmittee 16 04/04/11 8:39 A M



M. Bullock answered no. He explained that the damage
provision existed as AS 43.90.440. The damage provision
would arise if the state provides simlar inducenents to a
conpeting pipeline that they provided to the |icensee.

Representati ve Hawker wondered who had the authority to
i nvoke the abandonnent provisions, within the context of
AG A He asked if the legislature had the authority to
i nvoke t he abandonnent provi sions.

M. Bullock replied that the legislature did not have the
power to initiate the abandonnent provision in AS
43. 90. 240. TransCanada or the comm ssioners had the
authority to initiate the provision. Upon disagreenent,
arbitration would be the next step. If both parties agreed
that the project was uneconomc, the project would be
abandoned.

Representative Hawker asked if the proposed |egislation
inposed a duty on the legislature with regard to the power
to appropriate.

M. Bullock replied no, the bill made no change in the
legislature's ability to make an appropriation for the
proj ect .

Representative Gara requested testinmony from Larry Persily
prior to the passage of the proposed legislation from
conmittee.

Vi ce-chair Fairclough responded that she would pass the
request on to the co-chair.

Representative Gara agreed that the price of gas had
fallen. He asked if the state would have the ability to
beconre a part owner of the pipeline, if the project were
deened uneconomic. He recalled testinony that the state
could becone part owner of the pipeline for a 7 percent
rate of return, which could substantially reduce the
tariff. By reducing the transportation cost or the tariff,
the price of gas mght beconme nore conpetitive. He
encouraged creative solutions. He wondered if the proposed
| egislation mght prevent the opportunity for a creative
sol uti on.

9:49: 26 AM

House Fi nance Committee 17 04/04/11 8:39 A M



M. Wight replied that the proposed |egislation would not
pr ohi bi t t he pot enti al sol utions expressed by
Representative Gara. He noted that the bill did not address
negoti ati ons between TransCanada and the conm ssioners or
t he adm ni stration.

Representative Gara pointed out the two proposed gas |ines
that were discussed throughout the Capitol building. One
option, the instate line, included testinony stating that
the tariff cost would be four tines larger than the other
proposed option. He assuned that the instate line would
require a subsidy to enable affordable gas for Al askans. He
added that the downside for the instate line was the |ack
of taxation, which limts state revenue. He added that the
ot her proposed project would produce revenue for the state,
which led to his support of the |arger gasline. He wondered
whet her HB 142 contained |anguage that mght prevent the
state fromtaking the necessary subsi dy.

M. Wight believed that Representative Gara's statenents
anounted to a presunption, and he felt unqualified to state
whether the instate gas line would or would not produce
revenue for the state. He stated that he could not coment
about the necessity of a state subsidy for the instate
gasl i ne.

M. Bullock commented that AG A allowed both a gasline and
an AG A licensed gasline. The AG A licensed gasline was a
result of issuing a solicitation under certain requirenents
that commtnents be nmade in return for that offered by the
state. If the terns of AG A were changed, then the project
woul d no | onger be terned an AG A project.

Representative Gara understood. He pointed out that the |aw
stated that the gas sold in state was not taxed under the
production tax regine. The advantage of the proposed export
gasline was the revenue produced. He nentioned a study
performed by the Al aska Gasline Developnment Corporation
(AGDC) showed that the inefficiencies of an instate gasline
would require the balance of a tariff in the 17 dollar
range, conpared to a 3 or 4 dollar tariff for the export
gas |ine.

M. Wight admtted that he was unaware of the AGDC study.
He discussed Representative Gara's request for testinony
from M. Persily. He noted that M. Persily's area of
expertise included regulating and permtting for any Al aska

House Fi nance Conmmittee 18 04/04/11 8:39 A M



natural gas transportation project in the Lower 48. He
stated that M. Persily mght not be qualified to discuss
t he econom cs of the project.

Vi ce-chair Fairclough asked Representative Gara about the
docunents that he was quoti ng.

Representative Gara stated that he was happy to distribute
the docunent through the commttee aide. The AGDC
distributed an estimation of the cost of an instate
gasline, which was $17 in MCF. He added that Anchorage paid
$8 for gas, which included transportation, lifting, and
production. He comrented on the change in prices of gas
products in the Lower 48. He believed that M. Persily made
a good case that while shale gas produced a |ow price, the
downsi de was groundwater pollution. He understood from M.
Persily that the price of gas would increase due to
i ncreased regulation and he wi shed to hear testinony from
M. Persily on the issue.

9:56: 07 AM

Vice-chair Fairclough asked for proof that shale gas
contam nated water. She cautioned the statenent of
absol utes w thout the acconpanyi ng proof.

Representative Gara agreed that all fracking and all shale
gas were not the sane, but sonme states are proposing
substantial and expensive regulations for the devel opnent
of shale gas. He nentioned reports from the Lower 48 that
asserted contamnation of water l|eading to I|egislation
proposed that will increase the production of shal e gas.

Representative WIlson stressed that the responsibility lies
with TransCanada to prove that AG A is econom cal

M. Wight clarified that it was the state's responsibility
through the commssioners of DNR and DOR to determ ne
whet her the project was econom c.

Representative WIson commented on Representative Gara's
argunent that the state must contribute financial resources
to enable econonmic viability of the project. She disagreed
with Representative Gara's argunent.

M. Wight agreed.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 19 04/04/11 8:39 A M



Representative WIson added that the best action for the
state may nmean an increase in economcal fuel oil rather
t han revenue.

M. Wight wished to avoid a debate about revenues. He
mai nt ai ned t hat an i nstate gasline would provi de
opportunities for Al aska. He stressed that HB 142 addressed
the AG A process rather than the instate gasline.

Representative WIson asked about the potential to spend a
| arge quantity of state noney w thout acquiring a gasline.

M. Wight responded yes, the potential did exist. He added
that the question wuld be Dbetter addressed by the
adm ni stration.

10: 00: 03 AM

Representative WIson noted that the admnistration m ght
deem the project uneconom cal, since the comm ssioners are
privy to information that was not available to the
| egislature. She stated that the | egislature wished to have
access to the sane information.

M. Wight opined that the legislature's interest included
the wviability of the project and the w sdom of the
expendi t ur es.

Representati ve Doogan echoed the request of Representative
Gara regarding the testinony of Larry Persily. He believed
that the opinion of the federal coordinator was valid. He
asked M. Bullock's opinion regarding a potential dispute
bet ween the admi ni stration and TransCanada.

M. Bullock explained that any agreenent carried risk that
mght result in a court battle and damages paid. He opined
that one potential was that the project mght be deened
econonmc, yet the state decides not to go forward, which
woul d raise the issue that the state was no |onger acting
in good faith and could lead to litigation.

Representati ve Doogan recalled the phrase "treble danmages."
He asked to know the value of the l|egislature intervening
in the operation.

10: 04: 35 AM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 20 04/04/11 8:39 A M



M. Bullock likened the situation to buying a car and
having it evaluated for proper function.

Represent ati ve Doogan expressed that the value of a car was
far I ess than the value of the proposed pipeline.

Representative Hawker stated concerns that the [latitude
allowed in the commttee was mscharacterizing HB 142. He
asked whether the discussion was renotely relevant to the
bill.

M. Wight stated that the discussions were not totally
rel evant; but indirectly.

Representati ve Hawker asked whether the bill contenplated
conpeting projects.

M. Wight responded no.

10: 06: 42 AM

ROGER MARKS, LEGQ SLATIVE CONSULTANT, LEQ SLATIVE BUDGET AND
AUDIT COW TTEE, delivered the PowerPoint presentation
"Changes in North Anmerica Natural Gas Market Qutl ook
Between 2008 & 2011" (copy on file). He noted his
background working for DOR tax division for 25 years
beginning in 1983. H's prine responsibilities for DOR were
to analyze commerciality of North Slope gas from 1983 to
2008; for 15 years he was the only state enployee doing
that. He stated that he built Alaska's first conprehensive
economc nodel of North Slope gas comerciality. He
participated in crafting stranded act negotiations under
Governor Tony Know es and Governor Frank Mirkowski .

M. Mrks discussed the optimstic outlook which had
changed between 2008 and current time period. He provided a
brief history, pointing to graph "Henry Hub Spot Prices"
(Slide 2). Until the year 2000, gas prices were too |ow for
commercial consideration. Beginning in the year 2000, the
Lower 48 saw declining "low priced gas" and nore expensive
gas entered the market, which increased the price. The
trend continued through 2008 gas prices and the opinion was
that the high gas prices were permanent. He expl ai ned that
the current outlook was different and a North Slope gas
project, if it existed, would | ose noney.

10:11: 05 AM

House Fi nance Committee 21 04/04/11 8:39 A M



M. Marks referred to Slide 3: "2008 DOE/EIA Henry Hub
Forecast" graph for Departnent of Energy/Energy Information
Adm nistration (DOE/EIA). The forecast was wused by the
adm nistration to determne findings for awarding the
license in 2008. He noted that the forecast displayed were
representative of the consensus. The prices shown were in
2009 dol Il ars.

M. Mrks displayed Slide 4: "2008 Wod Mackenzie Henry Hub
Forecast” and Slide 5: "2008 Black & Veatch Henry Hub
Forecast."

M. Marks referred to Slide 6: "U S. Shale Gas Reserves."
He stated that shale changed the outlook. Shale is
sedimentary rock that was rich in gas. The graph
illustrated the increase in shale gas reserves between 2008
and 2011. Shale gas did not require a $30 to $40 billion
pipeline to bring it to market.

Representative Gara noted that the |east expensive shale
gas was currently produced and the nore expensive shal e gas
will be produced in the future.

M. Marks explained that one of the key unknowns regarding
Representative Gara's coment would be discussed later in
t he presentation.

M. Mrks continued that hard data between 2008 and now
illustrated that shale gas had increased eight billion
cubic feet per day (equivalent of two North Slopes). He
reported working extraordinary technol ogi cal advances in 3D

seismc horizontal drilling and fracturing technol ogy. The
technol ogy was still very new. Simlar reserves discovered
in Canada as well. The technological revolution was

r emar kabl e.

10: 15: 39 AM

M. Mirks detailed Slide 7: "2008 vs. 2011 DOE EIA
Unconventional Gas Production Qutlook" referring to shale,
tight gas, coal bed nethane. He explained that the forecast
in 2008 was for 25 Billion Cubic Feet (BCF) per day to be
produced by 2030.

M. Mrks explained Slide 9: "DOE/EIA Forecasted U S.
Natural Gas Supply 2008 vs. 2011." He pointed out that the

House Fi nance Committee 22 04/04/11 8:39 A M



outl ook in 2008 was that the gas supply would be 53 BCF/ day
in 2030. Current outlook was 68 BCF/ day, which was an
increase of approximately 15 BCF/ day. The 2008 forecast
included Alaska North Slope conming on in 2020. In the
current forecast the Departnment of Energy did not include
Al aska gas in their forecast.

10: 18: 49 AM

M. Marks described Slide 10: "DOE/ EIA Forecast of U S.
Supply & Demand."” He explained that a conbination of the
supply and denmand was illustrated in the slide. The current
situation for the United States involved inporting
approxi mately seven BCF per day.

M. Marks detailed Slide 11: "U S. Natural Gas Supplies.™
He expl ained that the additional production from shale was
not envisioned in 2008.

M. Marks explained Slide 14: "Gowh in Wrld Natural Gas
Reserves (excl. new shale)(tcf)." The slide illustrated the
total donestic gas production predicted from shale, which
i ncreases approxi mately 45 percent in 2030.

M. Marks discussed "New Sanctioned LNG Plants,” (Slide
15):

e Sakhalin, Russi a; opened 2009;
Shel | /M tsui/Mtsubishi; 1.5 bcf/d

e« Tangguh, Indonesia; 2009; BP/Mtsubishi/N ppon G |/LNG
Japan/ CNOOC/ Korea Gas; 1 bcf/d (short subsea pipes to
shore)

* Yemen LNG Yenen; 2009-2010; Total/Hunt Q/Korea
Gas/ Hyundai / Yenen government; 900 nmcf/d (tidewater)

e Qatargas I, Qatar; 2009; Exxon/Total/Qatar Petrol eum
2 bef/d (tidewater)

 Ras Laffan I11, GQatar; 2009 and 2010; Exxon/Qatar
Petrol eum 2 bcf/d (tidewater)

e Qatargas |11, Qatar; 2010; ConocoPhillips/Mtsui/Qatar

Petroleum 1 bcf/d (tidewater)
* Melchorita LNG Peru; 2010; Hunt G|/ Marubeni/ Repsol
600 mmtf/d (260 m | es of overland pipe)

 Pluto LNG Australi a; under construction, 2011
Whodsi de/ Tokyo Gas/ Kansai Electric; 1.7 bcf/d by 2014
(it ncludes planned expansions) (17 mles of subsea

pi pe)

House Fi nance Conmmittee 23 04/04/11 8:39 A M



 Soyo LNG, Angol a; under construction, 2012;
Chevron/ Eni / Total / BP/ nati onal oil conpany; 700 mcf/d

e Qatargas 1V, Qatar; 2011; Shell/Qatar Petroleum 1
bcf/d (tidewater)

e CGorgon LNG Australi a; under construction, 2014,
Chevron/ Shel | / Exxon/ Tokyo Gas/ Gsaka Gas/ Chubu
Electric; 2 bcf/d (expansion contenplated) (subsea
pi pe, nmeasured in the dozens of mles)

e Port Mresby, Papua New Guinea; under construction,
2014; Exxon/ N ppon G| /several other partners; 850
mrcf/d (450 mles of pipe, nostly subsea)

e (Queensland Curtis, Australi a; under construction,
2014; BG Tokyo Gas/CNOOC (China); 1.1 bcef/d

* {d adstone, Australi a; under construction, 2015;
Sant os/ Petronas/ Total; 1 bcf/d (260 mles of overland
pi pe)

10: 22: 27 AM

M. Marks continued with Slide 16, "Key Price Variables:"

e How nuch of shale reserves are econom c
e Environnental fracking issues

* Controls on greenhouse gas and air em ssions
o Affects coal demand, which conpetes with natural
gas

M. Marks detailed Slide 17, "Cost to Produce Shale
Reserves?"

e Still too newto tell. Unknowns :
0 How do shale wells performlong tern?
o Utimte recoveries and production potential for
wel | s?
e Costs will go up?
0 Production tends to drop off quickly
o Mre rigs will be needed: cost pressure
o Land access
o Water availability
e Costs will go down?
o Exploration continues
o Cost cutting technol ogi es possible
0 Reserves and production of new energy resources
tend to increase over tine

House Fi nance Committee 24 04/04/11 8:39 A M



10: 24: 44 AM

M. Marks discussed "Hydraulic Fracturing I|ssues,” (Slide
18):

e Can fracking fluid mgrate from deep underground to
contam nate shal | ow aqui fers?

e Sloppy drilling practices have occurred
e Currently under state oversight
o0 Updated standards for well design, drilling,

wast e di sposa
o Federal possible
e Conpliance and environnental costs will increase
0 Not overwhel mi ng (5% 20% per wel | ?)

* New technol ogies for water treatnment are energing

M. Marks detailed the process of fracturing or "fracking."
He noted that problens with pollution mght be avoided if
the fracturing was done properly. He added that the
"mai nstrean’ woul d believe that fracking was unlikely to be
banned, but regulatory costs night increase.

Representative Gara asked about Slide 18. He asked about
the increase in costs of 5 to 20 percent. He asked about
reported estimates of increased environnental regulations.

M. Marks responded that general consensus regarding
estimtes  of the potenti al state and Environnental
Protection Agency (EPA) oversight were those included in
his presentation. He agreed that various other estinates
coul d be found.

10: 28:12 AM

Representati ve Gara  asked about pot enti al credi bl e
estimates showi ng that the cost of shale fracture would be
greater than 20 percent.

M. Mirks stated that nost estimates were in the range
provided in the presentation, but many different estimates
existed. He reiterated that the recent advent of shale
fracture was the reason for the unknowns.

Vi ce-chair Fairclough asked if the intent of the estinmates

was to provide an understanding that increased costs may be
incurred with fracking.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 25 04/04/11 8:39 A M



M. Marks responded correct.

Vi ce-chair Fairclough concluded that a |arge supply of gas
existed and shale fracture included a great deal of
unknowns.

M. Marks discussed the issue of greenhouse gas and air
emssions with Slide 19, "US. Electricity Generation by
Fuel (billion kilowatt-hours). He stated the Departnent of
Energy's forecast showed that 48 percent of the fuel for
power generation was derived from coal. He added that one
gquarter of natural gas was used for electricity. Insofar as
regul ations increase the cost of coal, gas could becone a
nor e popul ar supply for power plants.

10: 30: 49 AM

Representati ve Doogan asked about the nuclear line. He
wonder ed whet her the increase represented a new plant.

M. Mirks replied that there had not been a new nucl ear
plant licensed in the United States since before 1979.

Represent ati ve Doogan questioned the graph on Slide 19 and
its referral to nuclear energy.

M. Mrks replied that in 2010 there were approximately
3200 billion kilowatt-hours.

Vice-chair Fairclough noted that the graph provided a
| ayer ed approach.

Representative Doogan stated that he understood that
nucl ear energy was rising according to Slide 19.

M. Marks explained that nuclear energy contributed
approximately 800 billion kilowatt hours in 2010 and 2030.
He explained that the top line of the graph represented the
total of all of the different sources of energy.
Represent ati ve Doogan under st ood.

M. Mrks discussed Page 20, "Regulation of G eenhouse
Gas. "

House Fi nance Conmmittee 26 04/04/11 8:39 A M



* Near term —insufficient support for conprehensive
climate change | egislation com ng out of Congress

e 2009 -EPA begins regulating GHG under the Cean Air
Act

* Subject to judicial challenge

e Congress may try to limt regulatory action under CAA

M. Marks deenmed it wunlikely that there would be any
greenhouse gas legislation comng out of Congress in the
near future. In 2009, the Environnental Protection Agency
began regul ati ng greenhouse gas under the Clean Air Act. He
noved on to address "Regulation of Air Em ssions”" on Slide
21. The EPA woul d soon issue tougher air em ssion standards
for nitrogen dioxide, sulfur dioxide, and mercury.

e EPA will soon issue tougher air em ssion standards for
ni trogen di oxi de, sul fur dioxide, nercury
» Large conpliance costs for old coal plants:
o Upgrading plant vs.
o New natural gas plant
» Decision depends on severity of regs and coal/gas
price spread
o At low gas prices coal plants will be shut down

Do not underestimate coal and railroad | obby

10: 35: 21 AM

M. Marks discussed the graph on Slide 22, " 2008 vs 2011
DOE/ EIA Henry Hub Forecast ($/ mmbtu) (2009 dollars). He
reiterated that alternative forecasts could be found.

M. Marks detailed Slide 23, "2008 vs. 2011 Wod WMackenzie
Henry Hub Forecast ($/ mbtu) (2009 dollars).

Representative Gara opined that the EIA and Wod Mckenzie
oil forecasts were typically wong. He asked if the natural
gas forecasts were nore accurate.

M. Mirks replied that "everyone's forecast 1is always
wrong." He believed that the opinion of the producers was
of greater inportance.

Representati ve Doogan asked why each forecast graph began
with the year 2015.

House Fi nance Committee 27 04/04/11 8:39 A M



M. Marks replied that DOE' s forecast was released in five
year increnents making the 2015 forecast the nobst rel evant
in 2011.

Representative Doogan asked if a substantial difference
exi sted between the 2010 and the 2015 forecast.

M. Marks replied no.

10: 38: 35 AM

M. Mirks clarified that both DCE and Wod Mckenzie
forecasted prices declining from$10 to $6.50 in 2030.

M. Marks continued with Slide 24, "2008 vs. 2011 Black &
Veatch Henry Hub Forecast."” He noted that Black and Veatch
predicted a drop of $2.50. He reiterated the inportance of
the opinion of the investors. He noted that every forecast
decreased since 2008 due to the increase in shale supply.

M. Mirks detailed Slide 25, "Alaska North Slope Gas
Pipeline Rate of Return.” He stated that every drop in
price of one dollar was approximately one and one half
percent drop in the rate of return. He added that one and
one half percent on a $30 billion project was substantial.

M. Mirks finished with Slide 26, "Conclusion: Wat has
Changed between 2008 and Now?" (Slide 26):

e Short-nmediumterm
o0 Gimmarket outl ook
o | nprudent for i nvestors to proceed while
uncertainties playing thensel ves out
o Qutlook for North Slope gas comercialization has
been deferred

* Longer-term
o0 Dependi ng on how certainties play out
o Possible alternative opportunities

10: 42: 47 AM

M. Mrks added that Russia had a fleet of Liquefied
Natural Gas (LNG ice-breaking tankers. He thought that the
tankers m ght gain popularity in Al aska.

Representative Doogan asked how the information presented
i nformed the discussion about HB 142.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 28 04/04/11 8:39 A M



M. Marks responded that a clause existed in AG A regarding
the term "uneconomc." He believed that great anbiguity
existed in the <clause, which could lead to long-term
[itigation.

Vice-chair Fairclough requested the specific «citation
guot ed.

M. Marks stated that he referred to AS 43.90.240(c)(1) and
(c)(2), which attenpts to define that which nmakes a project
unecononi c.

10: 46: 54 AM

Representative Doogan asked if the situation changed
sufficiently in the last three years to call into question
the project's econom cs.

M. Marks responded that a significant change in market
outl ook occurred between the tine that the license was
granted and the present. He opined that anbiguities in the
statute could result in various interpretations based on
f orecasts.

Representative Doogan wondered if forecasts mght appear
substantially different three years in the future as well.
The future could not be accurately predicted.

M. Mirks agreed that forecasted nunbers could change in
three years. If the clause in the statute had neaning, then
it must include a tinme dinension.

Representative Gara opined that the larger export driven
gasline was nost inportant to Alaska's future. He was

concerned that the bill created deadline that did not exist
before, and mght potentially conprom se the project. He
pointed to the wuncertainty about shale oil prices. M.

Persily testified that natural gas would be nore stable. He
asked whether M. Marks shared any of the concerns.

10: 51: 46 AM

M. Marks responded that the consensus outl ooks were | ow.
He believed that investors would wait to see how those
out| ooks evolved. He wunderstood that TransCanada would
apply for their certificate in 2014; if project was not

House Fi nance Conmmittee 29 04/04/11 8:39 A M



built for ten years, what was achieved for the nobney spent.
If the project was del ayed, new open season narkets could
change.

M. Marks discussed the potential for a future suppl enenta
ElS, which could be as expensive as the original depending
on changes such as new species on the endangered species
list. He questioned the value of what the state was putting
incurrently if the data and technol ogy becane obsol ete.

10: 55: 23 AM

Representative Gara asked about Slide 25. He understood
that the rate of return was | ower on natural gas.

M. Mrks replied that the rate of return represented the
fact that projects require noney from equity and debt. He
stated that the project had great risk. |If the project was
built five years ago, producers would be |osing noney. He
did not know rate of return required.

Representative Costello stated that HB 142 would provide
addi ti onal information as opposed to invoking the
unecononi ¢ cl ause of AdQ A

Vi ce-chair Faircl ough concurred.

Representative Quttenberg asked whether there was value in
Al askan gas in the future.

M. Marks responded that the North Anmerican natural gas
mar ket outl ook was less optimstic than it was during the
time that AG A was passed. As a result, the tinmeframe for
the comercialization of North Sl ope gas was deferred.

Representative Quttenberg clarified that TransCanada was
spending nmoney on projects that <could be 90 percent
rei nbursed. He asked why novi ng forward.

M. Marks thought the questions should be asked of
TransCanada, who believed that the project was em nent.

10: 59: 26 AM

Representative Hawker clarified the commttee statenent
that HB 142 "noves up deadline that did not exist before.”
He argued that the statenent contradicted the statenent of

House Fi nance Conmmittee 30 04/04/11 8:39 A M



M. Bul | ock. He chal | enged t he st at enent t hat
ConocoPhillips received a higher rate of return in Al aska.
He stated that the concept of rate of return was specific
based on various cal culations and interpretations. He noted
the difference between profitability and rates of return.

HB 142 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

11: 01: 35 AM

#
ADJ OURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 11: 01 AM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 31 04/04/11 8:39 A M



